%CE‘QED . 6l

NPS Form 10~900 "QEP 061993 ROGENVED 1024-0018
T%%atlonal ?Quw ! 1993

rk Smrv1ce

b NATIONAL
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HI ‘:TDRKI C PLACES REGISTRATION FORMEGISTER

{Rev. 8--B&)

United States Department of the IntREQ

historic names: JOHNSTON — TRUAX HOUSE

cther name/site number:

street & number: 209 Sensgca Sireet

not for publication: N/A

city/town: Weirton vicinity: N/6&
state: WV county: _Hancock code: 029 zip code: 26062

Ownership of Prgper%y. Private

Categery of Property: Building

Number of Resources within Property:

Contributing Noncontributing
1 buildings
sites
structuress
objiects
i _ Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed in the National
Register: _N/A

Name of related property listing: N/&
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784, as amended, I hereby cert
é nomination
reguast for determination of eligibility

meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the
National Register of HMistoric Places and meets the procedural and
professional reguirements set forth in 34 CFR Pari &0. In my opinion,

the property
meets
dogs not meet
the National Register Criteria. ___  See continuation sheest.

Certifyi fficial Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property
meets
___ does not meet
the National Register criteria. __  See continuation sheet.

Signature of commenting or other official Date
State or Federal agency and bureau Date

entered in the National Register ;Citlej%74hAU}k7“ __jjiilﬂ}

See continuation sheet.
determined eligible for the

National Register
. See continuation sheet.
. determined not 2ligible for the
National Registsar
__removed from the National Register
. other (explain):

Signature of Keeper Date of Action
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6. Function or lse

Historic: Domestic Sub: Single Dwelling
Current : Domestic Sub: Multiple Dwelling

Architectural Classification:

Other Description: Split-log cabin

Materials: foundation Stone roof Corrugated metal
walls Ingul-bricik/ aother Log/wood
vinyl

Describe present and historic physical appearance. _X See continuation
sheet.
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Certifying official has considered the significance of this property in
relation to other properties: Local .

Applicable National Register Criteria: 4, C

Criteria Considerations (Exceptions): N/A&

Areas of Significance: Exploration/Settlement
Architecture

Period(s) of Significance: 1785-1886

Significant Dates: 1783

Significant Person(s): _N/A&

Cultural Affiliation: N/A

Architect/Builder: Johnston, Benjamin, Jr.

State significance of preoperty, and justify criteria,
considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.
X See continuation sheet.



See continuation sheet. _X

Previous documentation on file (NPS): _
preliminary determination of individual listing (3& CFR &7) has been
requested.
previously listed in the National Register
previously determired eligible by the National Register
designated a National Historic Landmark
recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey # _ N/A
recorded by Historic American Engineering Record #

Primary Location of Additional Data:

State historic preservation office
Other state agency

Federal agency

Local government

Acreage of Propertys: 0.87 acres

UTM References: Zone Easting Northing

17 537920 4475540

Verbal Boundary Description: _X See continuation sheet.

Boundary Justification: _X See continuation sheet.

NMame/Title: Katheringe M. Jourdan, Director Northern Regional Office

Organization: WV State Historic Preservation Dffice Date: 22 March 1993

Street & Number: 1528 Market Street Telephone: (304) 238-1300
City or Town: Wheeling State: WV ZIP: 26003

Name: VYanessa Butler

Stree & Number: 1976 South Military Hwy #90 Telephone:_W (8041)827-4382

City or Town: Chesapeake State: VA Zip: 23320
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The Johnsgton-Truax House is one of the remaining early resources in
Hancock County. Constructed in 1783, the log core of the house was the
cabin of Benjamin Johnston, Jr. who was an early homesteader in the
Weirton area. The home later passed through several hands before beging
owned by the Truax family for over 100 years.

The property is located on the northeast side of Weirton's downtown and
mi1il area, north of the main Pennsylvania Avenue throughfare and east of
20th Street. The house lies on the north side of Seneca Street on a large
lot with the rear sloping down to trees and hillside. The neighborhood
around the house which was part of the Johnson and Truax farm appears to
have been subdivided into lots in the 1940s or S90s.

The house 1s currently a one-—and-a-half story home with a one-story wing
to the west. The cabin appears to have originally been a Hall and Parlor
floor plan with the door opening into a main room with a side parlor or
hedroom, and a overhead sleeping loft. When the Campbells made
improvements about 1830 they added two rooms to the east side as well as
a second fleoor for bedrooms across the entire length of the house. The
stairs lead from the smaell side room in the log structure to the bedroom
over the main room of the cabin. In 1886, the one story wing on the west
side of the log cabin was added by fthe Truax's and contained three rooms.

The front or south elevation is five bays on the main section of the house
and three bays on the west wing. The house has log walls probably covered
with clapboard when the first frame addition was made in 1830. The home
was covered with insul-brick at some point in the early 20th century and
recently has had some vinyl siding over this. A full porch across the
front of the house was added after the 1850's with a shed roof and a trap
door in the porch floor to the cellar under the east rooms of the house.
The west end of the porch was enclosed and now has a side door leading
onto the porch decking and a large multi-light window facing the sireet.
The size of the window openings vary on the house with multi-light
double-hung windows on the firset floor and short 1/1 double-hung openings
on the second floor. The 1886 wing has a center deoor leading out to
concrete steps with a 1xl sliding window to the left and a 1/1 double-hung
opening to the right. 7The gable roof of the house is corrugated metal on
two levels with a shed porch roof.

The west elevation shows the one~story wing with a short 1/1 double-hung
window near the front cormer and two horizontal rectangular openings.
There is a chimney at the gable peak. 0On the rear the roof line appears
to have been changed with no zave on the rear gable extension. The rear
or north elevation has the cne-story wing forming a rear ell with the
gable roof extending cut with relled asphalt. This wing has a center rear
door and flanking 1/1 double-hung openings as well as a single window on
the east side. To the left across the rear of the older section of the
house is a new one-stary shed addition with vinyl siding. Visible on the
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second floor are two 1/1 double-hung windows. The east elevation has no
ocpenings, with a brick chimney at the gable peak. Vinyl siding has been
applied to this elevaiton as well as the first floor of the front facade.

The intericr of the house has at present been divided intc two apartments,
with the one-story wing acting as one unit and the one-and-a-half story
section of the house as the secend unit. Time has seen the addition of
modern facilities such as kitchens and bathrooms on the first floor.
Except for the addition of one bathroom wall to create a hall, and closing
a doorway into the 1886 addition, the intericr floor plan seems tc have
changed very little for the last one hundred years. The log walls and
sztone foundation of the cabin are visible from inside an access panel and
in closets. The large stone fireplace in the main room of the cabin has
been enclosed behind a drywall but the depth of the interior space and the
exterior chimney confirms its existence. The 1850s parlor on the esast end
has a fireplace mantel with trim moulding influenced by the Greek Revival
period. Next to it is a built—-in cupboard with panelled wooden doors.
There are now two small narrow rooms between the parlor and the main room
of the cabin.

A stairway now leads from the old parlor to the second floor and the two
bedrooms. These two rooms have slanted ceilings near the ocutside wallsg
with the lower walls brought out tec create storage space. There are
narrow openings leading to the windows that from the interior create a
dormer effect. The wall and ceiling treatment on the interior of these
two bedrooms is tongue and groove four-inch-wide boards.

The 1886 addition has one large center rvoom with the rear ell being a
kitchen and the front enclosed porch housing a bathroom. There 1s a
fireplace on the west end of the house which 1s now used for a heating
stove.

While the house has had a change of siding materials over the years, these
alterations are reversible as are the enclosed porches and rear vinyl
addition. The house itself with the 17835 log core, and the 1830 and 1884
additions, shows the evolution and growth of the home over 200 years of
ownership. The house is one of a few known remaining log homes in Hancock
County.
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The Johnston-Truax House is significant under Criterion A for the early
settlement of Hancock County which later became part of Weirton; and
Criterion © for the architecture of the hewn log cabin constructed an the
property in 1783 and 1ts evolution through additions from c. 1830 and 18864
which also contribute to the plan of the house. The period of
significance is from the time the cabin was built in 1783 to when the last
addition was placed on the house in 1886.

The area today known as Weirton was first settled in 1771 when Harman
Greathouse built the first cabin on 800 acres in the area that was to
become Holliday's Cove, and later Weirton. His first name is still used
for the name of Harmon's Creek, which ie the southern boundary of the
city. The largest original land grant in the Weirton area was made to
Benjamin Johnston, Jr. on March 7, 1785 for two tracts of land in the
County of Yohogania, Virginia, on the Bhio River. At the time Hancock
County was a part of the Commonwealth of Virginia, under the governship of
Patrick Henry, Esg. who granted the land. The first tract of land
included 1700 acres and is identified today as that covering the entire
area where the Steel Works, Coke Plant, and Tin Mill are built (Northern
section of downtown Weirton) including Brown’'s Island; to Kings Creek and
east to what is now E. Simon Line. The second tract was granted the same
day for %94 acres near present day 20th and Pennsylvania Avenue.

Benjamin Johnston built a log house in 1783 on his tract of 294 acres that
he cultivated as a farm. The original plan of the leg house appears to
have been a Hall and Parlor with the main door opening inteo a large
mulfipurpose room with fireplace, and a smaller private room used either
as a parlor or bedroom was off to the side. This tract of land and home
was later passed to Charles Moorehead, by Johnston on September 24, 1798.
Charles Moorehead transfered the land to William and Elizabeth Moorehead
who in turn sold it to Robert Campbell on April 3. 1830. His son, John
Campbell, lived there until 18&6%?. The Campbell's made many improvements,
adding two rooms to the gast end of the house with board siding and
including two large windows. The east room was probably the new parlor
with & fine mantel on the fireplace and a built—in cupboard next toc it.
This parlor had the formal doorway from the new porch leading directly
into the room. The small voom conmmecting this parlor to the log cabin is
narrow with horizontal bead—-and-board wood siding as the interior wall
treatment. The second floor was probably also added to the house at this
time with the stairs leading upward from the old parlor. The Campbells
also added a cellar with stong walls under the new parler with the trap
decor on  the porch as the opening. A well 23 feet deep was hand dug in
the front of the house. The farm was sold to George Hindman who passed 1t
to Jane Adair Truax on April 1, 1871.

Jane Truax was a widow whosg husband William had died in 1864. William
had married Jane Adair on December 14, 1837 and together they raised ten
children. Ofter being a widow for almost seven years Jane bought the farm
from Mr. Hindmar. About six months later she also acquired a four-acre
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tract scuth of the farm, along what is now N. 20th Street, which had a
house on 1t. Her oldest son William lived there and raised twelve
children. This house was eventually dismantled about 1900 and the lumber
used at the home place.

Jane Truax was known as a hard working and determined lady, who rode
horseback to the Washington, Pennsylvania, Courthouse to make paymesnis
promptly on the farm which had cost her $6,300. Her deceased husband,
William, a former resident of New Jersey and Hanlin Station, PA, had saved
enough for a generous payment on the property before his death, and Jane
was not about to lose it.

After the deaths of seven children and marviages of the others, Jane asked
her son Charles to build onto the original log farmhouse and he added
three rooms on the west end about 1886, He lived in the house with his
mother, wife Julia, and their nine children. Jane Adalr Truax died in
1898 at 77 years of age and was buried at Three Springs Cemetery. The
Truax family coperated an orchard on the farm called Hill Top Fruit Farm
with 42 varieties of apples on about 20 acres of land. They also raised
peaches, grapes, bervies, corn, grain, hogs and chickens.

Jane's granddaughter, identified in the WEIRTON DAILY TIMES (Dec 31, 197&)
as Mrs. Lillian Jerdan, was still living in the log home at the time of
America’'s Bicentermial. She remembered the home being “"heated with a huge
stone fireplace where all the cooking was also done. The forests
aurrounding the home provided wood for the fireplace and later the hills
vielded some coal for fuel. Eventually the fireplace was closed over and
walled up when more modern heating and cooking modes came into being. The
floors of the early additions are of cak beards about six inches wide.

The rooms are tiny, especially the bedrooms. Mre. Jordan was born in the
home in 1B8? and was the only daughter of Charles and Julia Truax." The
Truax family owned the home for 110 years. Iin 1981, Mrs. Jordan passed
away at age 93, having lived in the house all her life. A year later the
home was purchased by the present owner, Vanessa Butler.

The Johnston—Truax House is one of the few known log homes dating to the
zarly settlement of Hancock County. While the original log wallis have
been covered with modern materials, the core of the house and the
additions from the 1850's and 1886 repressnt the evolution of a homestead
irnn the Northern Panhandle of West Virginia.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

U

Beginning at a point at the Nort

7 1993

heast corner of the lands of George Truaxg
thence by the northerly line South 4607 43 West for a distance of 1&8.99
tfeet to a point on the northerly line and the marker of the Northeast
corner of VYangssa Butley's properity:; thence South 147 47' East for a
distance of 2%91.14a fest to 2 point on the vnortherly line of the fhirty
(30) foot roadway: thence along the northerly ling North 89 833 West for
a distance of 167.3' to a pointy thence North 8% 45 West for a distance
of 213.38 feet Lo a pointy thence North 609 45" East for a distance of
143.8 feet to the starting point. The tract of land so described contains
0.87 acres, more or less.
BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION

The boundaries include the property historically associated with the
residence.
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PHOTO INFORMATION

JOHANSTON-TRUAX HOUSE, WEIRTON, WEST VIRGINIA, HANCOCK COG.
LOCATION: Johnston-Truax House
209 Seneca Street
Weirton, WV
Hancock County, West Virginia
PHOTD CREDIT: Katherine M. Jourdan
DATE: 21 January 1993

NEGATIVES: Northern Regional Office, Wheeling
WV State Historic Preservation Office

PHOTO 1 of &= View from street, West and Front or South Facade
Camaera looking Northeast

PHOTO 2 of 4: View of South and East Facade (L to R)
Camera looking Northwest

PHOTO 3 of 4@ View of East, and Rear or North Facade (L to R)
Camera looking Southwest

PHOTO 4 of 413 View of Rear or North facade
Camera looking South
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